
LAKE GEORGE VILLAGE PLANNING BOARD MEETING 

JULY 16, 2025 – 5:00 PM 

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

26 OLD POST ROAD - LAKE GEORGE, NY 

MEETING MINUTES  
 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 9 

 

Board members present: Carol Sullivan (Chairperson), Patricia Dow, Kevin Merry, Walt Adams, and 

Ryan Clark (Alternate) 

 

Board members absent: Dean Howland 

 

Others present: Debonnay Meyers (Planning & Zoning Clerk), Dan Barusch (Director of Planning and 

Zoning), Rob Langley, Donald McNeil, and Christopher Migliaro. 

 

Carol Sullivan called the meeting to order at 5:05 pm.  

 

NEW BUSINESS: 
 

APPLICATION: SC#2-2024 (MODIFICATION) 

APPLICANT: KICKING COUNTRY – ROB LANGLEY 

TAX MAP: 251.14-2-1 

ADDRESS: 325 CANADA STREET 

ZONE: COMMERCIAL MIXED USE 

SEQR: TYPE II 

 

“Applicants are seeking approval for an alteration to their existing and previously approved sidewalk café 

for their business, Kicking Country. The sidewalk café will be in front of the restaurant and will be 

surrounded by a brown wooden fence. The applicant plans to have flower boxes inside and outside the 

café as well as have a 60” tall greenery wall along the sides of the café. There will be three 6-tops on the 

left side of the café and two chairs with 1 coffee table on the right side of the café. There will also be three 

4-tops under the portico. There will be wooden platforms on the right side of the café due to grade, and 

there will be State Liquor Authority jurisdiction as the applicant will be serving alcohol.” 

 

Carol Sullivan asked if the alteration consisted of only the green space and the furniture, and Rob Langley 

replied with no. He explained that his intention was to also add platforms as he had some steep areas in 

the café. Carol Sullivan said she noticed the steepness when she went by that morning, so she understood 

why he wanted them. Carol Sullivan then turned to the Board and asked if they had any questions 

pertaining to the application. Walt Adams asked what the green wall was made of, and Rob Langley 

replied with plastic. Rob Langley then elaborated, stating that it would consist of 4-leaf clovers, and that 

he would swap it out once they start to fade. Carol Sullivan reminded the Board that they recently 

approved of one like this for The Lagoon, and there were no further questions about the greenspace. 

 

Patricia Dow asked about the planters and their location. Rob Langley stated that they plan to have them 

near the ground as their purpose was to weigh down the fence. He stated that without the boxes there, the 

fence would be easily movable. He compared them to the legs of a table as both share a similar purpose of 

keeping it balanced. The Board questioned what was in their packets, and Debonnay Meyers stated she 

included the previous application as well as the new one. She explained that the previous one was there to 

remind them of what’s existing, so they could see what was changing. Patricia Dow stated she was 

questioning the placement because she thought the planters had to be visible, like the boxes had to be on 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 9 

 

the railing. Rob Langley said the benefit of having the boxes below was not having to worry about the 

flowers being ripped out.  

 

The Board asked Dan Barusch to research Chapter 168, and Dan Barusch concluded that none of the 

sections in Chapter 168 mandate placement. Therefore, that means the flower boxes near the bottom of 

the fence were permitted. Carol Sullivan asked Patricia Dow if she had any other questions, and she said 

no. Carol Sullivan then turned to the remaining Board members and asked them if they had any other 

questions, and they all replied with no. 

 

Walt Adams made a motion to approve the application created by Kicking Country, Rob Langley, at tax 

map 251.14-2-1 at 325 Canada Street for alteration to their existing and previously approved sidewalk 

café. 

 

2nd MOTION: Patricia Dow 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Absent Aye 

Aye = 5 Nays = 0 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

Dan Barusch asked Rob Langley if he knew who he spoke with regarding his New York State Department 

of Transportation (NYSDOT) permit, and Rob Langley said a little bit. Dan Barusch told him to give 

Howard Silverstein the updated rendering, so he could update Kicking Country’s existing permit. Rob 

Langley asked Dan Barusch if he would be willing to provide Howard Silverstein’s information if he 

couldn’t find it, and Dan Barusch said he would. 

 

APPLICATION: SPR#8-2025 (AWNING) 

APPLICANT: DILLIGAF – ROBERT LANGLEY 

TAX MAP: 251.14-2-1 

ADDRESS: 325 CANADA STREET 

ZONE: COMMERCIAL MIXED USE 

SEQR: TYPE II 
 

“Applicants are seeking approval to change the pre-approved color of their awnings for their business, 

DILLIGAF. The Board approved the applicants to install maroon awnings during their October 16, 2024, 

meeting; but now the applicant wants them to be orange (the ones that were installed and are up now).” 

 

Carol Sullivan informed the Board that Rob Langley was the representative for DILLIGAF tonight, and 

that she was going to explain the history behind the request. She explained that it all started when the 

Board reviewed DILLIGAF’s site plan application, and they noticed a color change in the awnings; and 

because of that shift, it prompted the Board to ask awning-related questions. The Board then got the 

response saying the exterior façade, which included all signs and awnings, would be identical to what was 

proposed in the rendering. Therefore, the Board decided to move forward with approval and added the 

condition of switching the green awnings with maroon ones. Unfortunately, the approval wasn’t followed 

through as Bill Massry changed the color from maroon to bright orange and then decided to install them 

without Board approval.  



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 9 

 

Carol Sullivan then informed the Board that two local businesses were thrown into the mix because they 

had orange tied to their business. She explained that whether the colors were approved or not, their shades 

of orange were closer to following the color ordinance than Bill Massry’s florescent orange, so there 

could be a middle ground established. She then told the Board that their goal tonight was either to approve 

the awnings as is or to request them to be a darker shade. Carol Sullivan concluded her statement by 

saying they couldn’t use “there’s no other orange in the Village” as a reason to deny the application 

because there was an established precedence now, and that they should take everything that was said into 

consideration. 

 

Walt Adams started the deliberation by saying that the color choice didn’t fit the Village at all, and that he 

felt that he was staring at a sign rather than an awning. Patricia Dow chimed in to state that she didn’t 

approve of the color choice, nor of Bill Massry’s decision to defy the Village’s regulations. She also 

heavily expressed that the examples used to justify Bill Massry’s choice weren’t fair. Carol Sullivan 

stated that it was fair because they exist. Patricia Dow stated the dimensions of the burnt orange umbrellas 

were smaller than the bright orange awnings and the difference between DILLIGAF and the other 

business was the business location. She continued saying that DILLIGAF was on Canada Street while the 

other one was on a backstreet, so it wasn’t a fair rebuttal. Carol Sullivan simply replied that because 

orange was picked, the color started the precedence.  

 

Carol Sullivan then asked Patricia Dow if she was against the idea of orange or if she’d be willing to meet 

in the middle. Patricia Dow simply replied with they should stick with what was approved, and that she 

wasn’t willing to negotiate. The Board asked for her to elaborate, and Patricia Dow said it was important 

for things to go as written because if the Board kept folding to color requests, it can and will start future 

predicaments. Patricia Dow stated there was a guy on Beach Road that wanted his building purple, and 

the Board told him he had to pick from the approved color palette. In the end, he followed Village 

regulations with no pushback.  

 

Carol Sullivan said regardless of the time expectancy, the owner has the right to request an alteration. 

Carol Sullivan then stated Rob Langley had every right to request a color change according to Village 

law, but he couldn’t change it without approval. Rob Langley stated that he was the one who pushed for 

the maroon awnings, and after talking with Bill Massry, he realized that his color choice wouldn’t do the 

building justice. He advised that the awnings would’ve clashed with the orange backlighting and that it 

would look like “McDonald’s” with the flashy colors. Kevin Merry said he understood the precedence, 

but he wasn’t a fan of orange. Carol Sullivan said it could be toned down, but Kevin Merry’s stance 

remained as he said even with the burnt orange, it was still too flashy and out there. Carol Sullivan then 

turned to Rob Langley and said that it was unfortunate that he had to come back for the awnings, to which 

Rob Langley said the orange awnings could be used as a distraction from all the merchandise in the 

windows. Carol Sullivan then turned to the Board and asked what they could do to make all parties happy. 

Ryan Clark suggested having the applicant submit a new application for the burnt orange color. Dan 

Barusch explained that the application did include that as the pumpkin orange color was the first choice, 

and the burnt orange color was the second choice. Carol Sullivan asked Dan Barusch if the umbrellas 

were darker than the pumpkin orange color, and Dan Barusch answered yes.  

 

Dan Barusch then wanted to tell the Board how his office found out about the awnings. He said he 

received multiple complaints about the color choice, and it prompted his office to look into the ordeal. 

Dan Barusch said that out of all the complaints, the was one that stood out was “when did Popeyes come 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 9 

 

to town”. Dan Barusch then stated that he could elaborate more if the Board felt it was necessary or 

relevant; but regardless of whether they wanted to hear it or not, the Board needed to decide whether they 

wanted to accept what was presented or ask for an alternative option. 

 

Carol Sullivan asked Walt Adams what he wanted to do, and Walt Adams replied with alternative option. 

Rob Langley interjected to state that he had a swatch of the burnt orange for the Board to review. Ryan 

Clark asked if the color would fade overtime, and Carol Sullivan replied with no. Kevin Merry said it was 

like an umbrella-like material, so it was unlikely for it to fade. The Board passed around the swatch and 

started to share their thoughts amongst each other. Ryan Clark said he had no objections and liked the 

color. Patricia Dow said she understood why Bill Massry wanted to switch as the maroon and the orange 

would clash; but her statement doesn’t excuse Bill Massry’s bright color choice.  

 

Ryan Clark stated that he wasn’t a Board member when the sign was reviewed; but from a resident’s 

standpoint, he thought that the sign looked good on the building. The Board agreed that it did look nice, 

but it didn’t excuse the sudden color change. Kevin Merry then asked Rob Langley how the awnings went 

from the approved burgundy to orange. Rob Langley explained that after the meeting, he met with Bill 

Massry to tell him the news of the approved burgundy awnings. Rob Langley said he thought it was going 

to go smoothly; but suddenly, Bill Massry changed his mind, and the awnings changed from green to 

orange. Rob Langley said he had no clue that was going to happen; but when he saw it, he had two 

thoughts. The first one being that the awnings looked good with the orange backlighting; but the second 

thought being the email from Dan Barusch was coming, and that suggested that Bill Massry was in the hot 

seat again. Walt Adams interjected to state that Bill Massry’s actions showed that he had no respect for 

the Village at all, and that was what infuriated him. Carol Sullivan asked if Bill Massry ever thought to 

talk with Dan Barusch before changing the color, and Rob Langley said he was shocked that he didn’t go 

to him first. Rob Langley explained that Bill Massry heavily relied on him for the answers as to what he 

could do or not do in the Village as Rob Langley knew more of the code than Bill Massry did. 

 

Carol Sullivan polled the Board again to discuss what had been said so far. She asked if they were leaning 

towards the burnt orange or the pumpkin orange. Walt Adams said he wasn’t a fan of either. Patricia Dow 

kept looking at the colors and couldn’t come up with an answer. Carol Sullivan told the Board that she 

could see that they were having a hard time getting over what happened. She stated that it was wrong of 

him to change the color as well as install the awning without Board approval; but they couldn’t change 

the past, so they must look past that. Rob Langley stated that he had hopes of continuing to work 

alongside Bill Massry and the Village of Lake George as he didn’t mind being a middle person. He 

continued saying that Bill Massry asked him for his opinion on things all the time, and the most recent 

one was changing the green awning frame to black. Rob Langley said he told Bill Massry to not change 

anything until he spoke with the Village about it. Carol Sullivan told Rob Langley that she appreciated his 

effort. 

 

Carol Sullivan asked the Board again to share their thoughts, and this time she started with Kevin Merry. 

Kevin Merry said if it was approved blue, it should be blue unless the applicant asks for another color the 

right way. Kevin Merry voiced that it was a waste of the Board’s time to approve a color just for it to be 

changed last minute and installed without their approval. Carol Sullivan said she understood his points, 

and that Bill Massry should’ve asked the Board for a color change; but it didn’t happen. So, they should 

find a middle ground to appease both parties. She recommended going with the burnt orange and asked 

the Board for their thoughts on that. Patricia Dow said she didn’t see much of a difference between the 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 5 of 9 

 

two colors and Kevin Merry said the maroon was just fine. Carol Sullivan said if there wasn’t an existing 

precedence, she would’ve been firm about the maroon; but because it existed, she thought the burnt 

orange was a better option than the pumpkin one. Rob Langley inquired about another business that had 

orange affiliated with it, and the Board said they had no say on the color choice of a country’s flag.  

 

Patricia Dow said she was having a hard time with this because DILLIGAF was on a main street while the 

other wasn’t. She then asked if that backstreet business came before the Board for the façade change, and 

The Board said they weren’t sure. Patricia Dow said regardless if it was or not, the Board approved what 

was submitted and they submitted maroon awnings. Carol Sullivan reminded the Board that per the 

Village code, the owner can come back to the Board for a color change. Dan Barusch told the Board that 

the swatch was the closest to complying with the statute. Plus, it was close enough to the orange 

umbrellas and the orange paint. Majority of the Board felt approving the application would show Bill 

Massry that he got away from any consequences, and Dan Barusch said that wasn’t true. He explained 

that approving the burnt orange would push Bill Massry to purchase new sets of burnt orange awnings, 

and that would show him to wait for approval not just go for it.  

 

Carol Sullivan said she was for the burnt orange due to precedence. Patricia Dow said after hearing 

everyone’s points, she was for the burnt orange as well. Kevin Merry asked if a vote should be made, and 

Carol Sullivan said she’d make the motion. 

 

Carol Sullivan made a motion to approve the DILLIGAF awnings at tax map 251.14-2-1 to exchange out 

the current bright orange awnings to the sample that was provided to us called Tuscan. It’s Sunbrella and 

the number on it is 4677-0000.  

 
2nd MOTION: Patricia Dow 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Nay Nay Absent Aye 

Aye = 3 Nays = 2 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

Carol Sullivan asked if the Village could keep the swatch for the file, and Rob Langley said that was 

okay. He then asked if he could take a photo of it, and Carol Sullivan said yes. Rob Langley took a picture 

of the front and back of it, so he knew the details.   

 

Walt Adams indicated that he noticed sandwich boards outside of DILLIGAF that showcased Donald 

Trump giving people the middle finger. Walt Adams voiced that it was inappropriate, and those boards 

shouldn’t be out at all. Rob Langley said the signs were on DILLIGAF’s property, so he thought he could 

do that. Dan Barusch advised all that if the five-foot setback was met and the sign was on their side of the 

property, they could. The Board asked how that was possible, and Dan Barusch said it was in the code. He 

then explained that they were working on changing it to where it wouldn’t be permitted, even if you had 

the space.  

 

Dan Barusch then changed the topic to discuss what needed to be said for the record. He said that if one 

business has something, the surrounding businesses point fingers and say, “well they have it out, so I will 

too”, and that starts a domino effect of non-compliance. He stated a great example of that was the racks 

outside of DILLIGAF’s store. He said he had several businesses reaching out to him, which resulted in 

additional tensions that he, Jim Anagnos, and Debonnay Meyers must handle daily. Dan Barusch made it 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 6 of 9 

 

clear that if the awnings were not the burnt orange color, Bill Massry would get a ticket. Dan Barusch 

then stated that Bill Massry better not try going around tonight’s determination because if he hears Bill 

Massry went to the mayor about it, it won’t be good. Rob Langley said he would deliver the message to 

him. Rob Langley then asked if there was a deadline for installation. Dan Barusch said a couple weeks, 

give or take when the awnings come in. 

 

Rob Langley brought up the sandwich boards again as he had further questions about it. Dan Barusch told 

everyone that he tries to be lenient for those who don’t have the space for them, like encouraging 

alternative measures such as menu boards. Dan Barusch said it gets everything they need out there 

without the worry of tripping over a small sign. He then stated that the reason the Village was changing 

the rules for a-frame signs was because those who were permitted to have them don’t follow the 

regulations, and it causes headaches for the Planning and Zoning office. Dan Barusch said Rob Langley 

could mention pushing the a-frame sign back to meet the setback, but he doubts that’ll change the 

outcome as it’s been a reoccurring issue for years now. 

 

Dan Barusch wanted to say on behalf of his Planning and Zoning department, and as well as on behalf of 

his two Boards, that Rob Langley had been a pleasure to work with, and he hopes that he will continue 

working with him for future projects. Rob Langley said it was a pleasure working with everyone, and that 

being present tonight for the not approved orange awnings wasn’t ideal. The Board thanked Rob Langley 

for his efforts and his honesty. 

  

APPLICATION: SPR#7-2025 

APPLICANT: 163 TAPROOM – DONALD MCNEIL 

TAX MAP: 251.18-3-40 

ADDRESS: 163 CANADA STREET 

ZONE: COMMERCIAL MIXED USE 

SEQR: TYPE II 
 

“Applicants are seeking approval to add temporary curtain walls and door to an existing patio for their 

business, 163 Taproom. There will be no changes to stormwater management or plans for use change. The 

project costs roughly $10,000 to complete and was approved by the Zoning Administrator in the fall of 

2024 only temporarily for the off-season at the concurrence of the Board. Applicant states adding it year-

round would help their business because it would prevent them from losing seating due to uncontrollable 

weather conditions. The applicant also stated that allowing the walls would help them prevent losing 

revenue, and it would also keep the area cooler for their guests.” 

 

Carol Sullivan asked if his request was just leaving the curtain walls and door in place, and Donald 

McNeil said yes. The Board asked him why he wanted the walls to remain, and he answered it with 

allowing it would help the business succeed. The Board asked how, and Donald McNeil explained that it 

kept the seats available even during uncontrollable weather conditions. Carol Sullivan said she wasn’t in 

favor of their look, but she understands the need for them. She asked if there was a possibility of leaving 

them open during the summertime, and Don McNeil said they were open all the time except when it’s 

raining or if the business was closed. Carol Sullivan polled the Board and asked how they felt about her 

suggestion. The Board had no objections to it and decided to add it as a condition. 

 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 7 of 9 

 

Donald McNeil said that the walls helped them with heating costs, and the Board asked how they did. 

Donald McNeil said the wind gust from Fire and Ice rips used to rip right through the building, and that 

cold air goes as far as to the tables closest to the kitchen; but now with the walls, the building has a 

barrier. He said it prevents the wind from going inside by protecting the front door.  

 

Patricia Dow asked if his intent was to have the walls up all year, and Donald McNeil replied with yes. 

Patricia Dow stated that that includes when it’s raining or when it’s cold, and Donald McNeil said that 

was the plan. Carol Sullivan asked if the Board had anything else to say about the application, and they 

said no.   

 

Kevin Merry made a motion to approve the application created by 163 Taproom, 163 Canada Street, tax 

map 251.18-3-40 as presented. 

 

Carol Sullivan reminded Kevin Merry to add the condition. Kevin Merry amended the motion to include 

the following, “be used inclement weather otherwise open, and closed for evenings”. 

 

2nd MOTION: Patricia Dow 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Absent Aye 

Aye = 5 Nays = 0 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

APPLICATION: SPR#6-2025 

APPLICANT: CHRISTOPHER MIGLIARO 

TAX MAP: 251.10-3-62 

ADDRESS: 2 SCRIMSHAW LANE 

ZONE: RESIDENTIAL 

SEQR: TYPE II 
 

Applicants are seeking approval to develop an addition on their residential home to add in a large living 

room area, a 3-car garage with a second-floor loft and a 5’ by 18’ deck as well as converting an existing 

garage into a bedroom. There will be a minor project for stormwater management, with eave trenches 

proposed around the addition, and the project will cost the applicant $250,000. The estimated construction 

schedule will begin September 2025 and will take 9 months to complete.  

 

The Board asked who was going to represent SPR#6-2025, and Christopher Migliaro said he would. Carol 

Sullivan asked if he could take the time to explain what was being done, so the Board had a better 

understanding of the project. Christopher Migliaro said he was planning to add a large living room area 

with a 3-car garage, and some minor alterations to pre-existing rooms. Carol Sullivan asked if the Board 

had any questions, and Patricia Dow said she had a hard time seeing what the original floor plan was and 

what was the addition. Christopher Migliaro stood in front of Patricia Dow and showed her what was 

original and what wasn’t. Kevin Merry asked how many square feet it will be when completed. Dan 

Barusch said he reviewed the plans and saw 3822 as the measurement. Christopher Migliaro said the new 

living space was 2266 square feet and the new garage was 1300 square feet. He then mentioned that the 

existing garage was 1400 square feet, and that it would be turned into a bedroom. He concluded that his 

measurement was 2266 square feet. 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 8 of 9 

 

Carol Sullivan asked the Board if they had any other questions to which there was no response. 

Christopher Migliaro said the whole project was something he had been wanting to do for a while now, 

and he was hoping for approval. Patricia Dow asked about his plans on levelling, and Christopher 

Migliaro indicated the area was pretty level; but he planned to extend it a little bit and use big granite 

rocks for stormwater. The Board questioned the black line on the rendering, and he said it showed where 

they would dig into the hill. Kevin Merry asked Dan Barusch what the percentage of development was. 

Dan Barusch said 50% was the maximum, and that when he reviewed the project, he found the project 

wasn’t meeting that. Dan Barusch took the time to show the Board where he found that information on the 

rendering. He said based on what was written on the rendering, it would be right around 40%.   

 

Walt Adams asked about stormwater. Dan Barusch said it triggered stormwater design, which was shown 

in the rendering. Christopher Migliaro took the time to show the Board where all that information was. 

Patricia Dow asked what was on the slab, and Carol Sullivan said the new addition. The Board asked 

about plumbing and he said there was none for the new addition. Patricia Dow asked what the purpose of 

completing the project would be, and Christopher Migliaro said because he could.  

 

Kevin Merry made a motion to approve the application created by Christopher Migliaro located at 2 

Scrimshaw Lane, tax map 251.10-3-62, as presented. 

 

2nd MOTION: Carol Sullivan 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Absent Aye 

Aye = 5 Nays = 0 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

Dan Barusch pulled Christopher Migliaro to the side and told him to tell his architect that he needs 

construction plans, and Christopher Migliaro said he got them this morning. Dan Barusch said he would 

need three sets to start the permitting process, and Christopher Migliaro said he would get that for him.  

 

MINUTES: 

March 19, 2025 (CS, PD, WA, DH) 

 
Carol Sullivan asked the Board to share their thoughts about the minutes. She started the conversation by 

saying she sent her comments to Debonnay Meyers via email before the meeting. Both Walt Adams and 

Patricia Dow said they had nothing. Kevin Merry said he wasn’t there, and Ryan Clark said he wasn’t a 

member at that time.  

 

Carol Sullivan made a motion to approve March 19, 2025, as presented. 

 

2nd MOTION: Walt Adams 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Abstain Absent Abstain 

Aye = 3 Nays = 0 Abstain = 2 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

 



  

 

 

Planning Board Meeting Minutes Page 9 of 9 

 

May 21, 2025 (CS, PD, KM, WA, DH) 

 

Carol Sullivan asked the Board to share their thoughts about the minutes. The Board agreed that there 

were no objections to approving them as presented. 

 
Carol Sullivan made a motion to approve May 21, 2025, minutes as presented. 

 
2nd MOTION: Kevin Merry 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Absent Abstain 

Aye = 4 Nays = 0 Abstain = 1 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

June 18, 2025 (CS, PD, KM, WA, DH) 

 
Carol Sullivan asked the Board to share their thoughts about the minutes. Patricia Dow said she thought 

she didn’t see where she returned to the meeting. The Board reviewed the minutes and found where it was 

mentioned. Patricia Dow then found little edits that needed to be corrected, and Debonnay Meyers said 

she would look into them. 

 

Carol Sullivan made a motion to approve the June 18, 2025, meeting minutes with the changes as 

suggested. 

 
2nd MOTION: Patricia Dow 

Carol Sullivan Patricia Dow Walt Adams Kevin Merry Dean Howland Ryan Clark 

Aye Aye Aye Aye Absent Abstain 

Aye = 4 Nays = 0 Abstain = 1 Absent = 1 Motion carried. 

 

Motion to adjourn by Carol Sullivan at 5:49 pm., seconded by Kevin Merry, and unanimously carried. 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Debonnay Meyers 
Debonnay Meyers 


